Modification #3 to RFA #M-0AA-GH-HSR-05-002

1)  General Preparation Guidelines - additional information.  Applicants may choose to add a table of contents to their application which is not counted in the page limit for the technical application.  Applicants should include an acronym list in the attachments.

2)  ANNEX B – Kenya Mission Contact Information: The telephone number listed in the RFA for Kenya was not correct. Please note the correct number is: 254-2-862400 ext. 2234. 

3)  ANNEX B – Peru Mission Contact Information:  The telephone number listed in the RFA for Peru was not correct. Please note the correct number is: 511-618-1200

Responses to RFA Questions for Modification #3

Country Eligibility

Q1:
Will all eligible countries (and proposals developed for them) count equally; i.e. will under-five mortality, maternal mortality be considered when reviewing proposals?

A1:
Yes, all eligible countries are weighted equally.  There are no additional points awarded based upon a country’s mortality rates. However, in the situational analysis, applicants are required to present data (where available) for morbidity and mortality in the proposed target area, in order to make the case for a particular set of interventions. Please refer to the evaluation criteria provided at the end of each funding category section, for guidance on points and scoring.  

Q2:
It has been noted by many of us that Latin American countries have not been selected for CS programs recently.  Why have Latin American countries not been selected and should we worry about submitting for Latin American countries in the current cycle?

A2:
There are no geographic priorities for the CSHGP as all regions have equal priority and all applications are scored against stated evaluation criteria listed within each funding category.  The CSHGP recommended three programs in the LAC region for funding during the last cycle, in addition to the existing programs. 

Eligibility Requirements 

Q3:
We’re getting the message from USAID in DC to involve new PVOs, perhaps even as a prime or partner in an expanded impact bundle, yet the mission (USAID in-country) is not supportive of us involving a PVO they don’t know or that doesn’t have CSHGP experience.  How should we reconcile these differing views within USAID?  

A3:
USAID encourages partnerships of all kinds, including those with new partners.    USAID in Washington and at the Mission-level are interested in working with new partners.  However, collaboration with U.S. PVO-partners is only a requirement in the bundled expanded impact category.  

Q4:
Can a PVO have two (2) active child survival and health programs in the same country?

A4:
Yes, there are no restrictions on the number of CSH programs per country.  

Q5:
The RFA states that as of September 30, 2004 a PVO may be the recipient of no more than six ongoing child survival and health programs at any one time.  Is 2004 the right year for this?  Does this basically just mean that no PVO is to have more than six projects at any given time, most importantly, September 30, 2005?

A5:
As of September 30, 2004, an applicant may be a recipient of no more than six ongoing child survival and health programs at any one time.  Should an applicant currently have six on-going programs and one ends on or before September 30, 2005, then the applicant would be eligible to apply for one award.  In addition, an eligible applicant may submit up to two (2) applications in response to this RFA, however one of those must be submitted under the TB category (and only one TB category application per applicant).  In past years awards were made which were exempted from this restriction; if you have a question about your particular situation, please contact the CTO.  

Q6:
Section C. I. 2(b) states that the organization must have at least 5 years of experience in implementing health-related programs in a developing country.  Our organization is 5 years old, but during our first year of operation we were establishing our program, and we began implementation late in our first year.  Are we eligible?

A6:
A full five years of experience implementing international health programs in developing countries must be documented in your application in order for it to be considered.  

Q7:
How does USAID define “operational” with respect to the organizational requirement that applicants be operational in country?  Is this only determined by a signed agreement with the host country?  How does this work with an “international affiliate?”  

Q7:
How does USAID define "operational" with respect to the organizational requirement that applicants "be operational in the country where the CSHP is proposed"?  For example, if the applicant is registered with the host government and has a signed agreement document to that effect, but completed its most recent health project in that country in late 2003, is the applicant considered "operational"?  On the other hand, if the applicant has been and is currently implementing programs in the country in a particular region and has a signed collaboration agreement with the relevant regional authority, but is not registered as an NGO with the national government, is the applicant considered "operational" for the purposes of CSHGP?
Q7:
What are appropriate methods to document legal authorization to work in a country?

Q7:
We’re applying under the New Partner category.  The RFA asks for specific letters of support for the proposed program (pp. 17, final paragraph).  If we are already operating and have our local government/MOH/etc. official authorizations to operate in place, do we still need these letters as well?  

A7:
PVOs are required to be operational in the country where the child survival and health program is proposed (see section C. I. 2(c) of the RFA).  Documentation of this should provide evidence that the host country government recognizes the applicant or its international affiliate as a legal entity with authority to work in the country.  This documentation must be submitted in the application.  An international affiliate is defined as a member of a governing body of which the U.S. PVO is also a member.  Please note: an applicant is not required to have ongoing activities or projects within the target country.  Applicant organizations should be “operational” in the sense that they are able to start-up activities without delay at the time of the official award date (i.e. September 30).  


Documentation that an applicant is operational in-country is not the equivalent of letters of support for the proposed project.  Letters of support for the proposed project must also be obtained from the cooperating government organizations and/or other organizations with which the applicant will establish a formal relationship.  

Funding Categories 

Q8:
Please clarify expanded impact category: would it include expanding to a few provinces within a country (vs. expanding nationally)?

Q8:
Can you please clarify what would be an acceptable size/scope (geographic) for a bundled expanded impact application in India?  (since nation/state is so huge)

A8:
The expectation is that an Expanded Impact application will focus on a successful intervention(s), strategy or approach and apply this at a sub-national level or nationally.  The expectation is that the Expanded Impact category will reach an increased beneficiary population, including children under five years of age and women of reproductive age.  The applicant and its partners must determine the proper scope and breadth that will be both manageable and successful in any given country.  The in-country partners will also support and assist in reaching an increased beneficiary population.      

Q9:
For the entry/new partner category, the narrative needs to be 25 pages.  Is that single or double-spaced?

A9:
The narrative should be single-spaced.

Q10:
It was mentioned at the RFA Conference that the bundled proposals need to have mission buy-in, do you mean general support and engagement or true financial buy-in?

A10:
Financial support is not a requirement.  Demonstration of clear and firm support from the relevant USAID Mission(s) is essential for a successful application.  The purpose of Mission collaboration is to ensure that Missions are aware of programs being proposed in their countries and that the program objectives are aligned with the strategic objectives of the Mission(s).  

Q11:
If a PVO is the non-lead (sub) in a bundled application, is it still considered one of the two maximum numbers of applications?

A11:
No, only applications in which the applicant is the lead or prime are counted toward the application limit.  An applicant may appear as a sub-grantee on any number of applications.  Please note: if an applicant is submitting two applications, one must be in the TB category.  

Q12:
Is the $1.25M funding limit for entry/new partners an annual funding level or funding for the 4-5 life of the program?

A12:
The $1.25 million USAID funding limit is for the life of the program (i.e. 4-5 years).

Q13:
I am writing to confirm that the grants being awarded for Entry/New Partner category of the FY 05 CSHGP grant competition must take place over a 4-5 year period of time.  Can each potential grantee have the request up to $1,250,000 or is that the total to be disbursed to the 3- 4 grantees who are successful in their bid for support?  In other words, can you please confirm the maximum budget amount that can be requested for Entry/New Partner applicants?

A13:
Each applicant in the Entry/New Partner category can request up to $1.25 million from USAID for a 4-5 year period.  

Q14:
Do Expanded Impact submissions and Bundled Expanded Impact submissions compete against each other?  We were not sure if this was considered the same category or not?

A14:
Yes, they compete against one another; bundled is just one of the two options under the Expanded Impact category, with all applicants to this category competing. 

Q15:
Please clarify USAID’s definition of “existing infrastructure” and what is meant/expected by requiring PVOs to have separate funding available to cover that.

A15:
Some applicants in the Expanded Impact category will propose the scale-up of proven child survival interventions.  Other applicants may intend to integrate an Expanded Impact program with an existing general development program, i.e. a civil society program, food distribution program, or other types of development programs that are not child survival-specific and therefore not supported by the CSHGP.  Applicants that wish to integrate with these types of programs must have the funds necessary to continue the platform program because CSHGP funds cannot support those activities.  In addition, the platform program must have adequate “existing infrastructure” within which a child survival program could be integrated.  

Q16:
What is the rationale for the 30% limitation on LOE for HIV/AIDS in the standard category this year?

Q16:
Can the HIV LOE ever be more than 30%?  

A16:
The 30% LOE limitation applies to all funding categories.  Given the current Bureau for Global Health funding allocations and the existence of other funding mechanisms available for HIV/AIDS activities, a limit was placed on the amount of funds the CSHGP can make available for interventions focusing on HIV/AIDS.

Q17:
How can we be sure we’re eligible to apply in the “new partner” category?  Can you please clarify “substantial development and health expertise” as outlined in the RFA?

A17:
Substantial experience is defined as a PVO’s demonstrated ability over a number of years to implement effective programs and set higher standards for both their own organization and the PVO community.  Their programs propose viable and innovative strategies, utilizing methods or materials for implementing activities that may be adapted by other organizations or be applicable on a wider scale.  Please review the full description of each category and select the category that most appropriately reflects the PVO’s strengths and experience in the proposed program.  

Q18:
Can an organization that has not received a CSHG be considered for the entry/new partner category if it has received other USAID funding?

Q18:
The RFA states that applicants for entry/new partner category awards should not have received USAID development assistance previously.  Does “previous development assistance” include grants outside of the CSHGP?  For example, our organization has received a Global Development Alliance grant from USAID—are we still eligible under the entry/new partner category?

A18:
To be eligible for the Entry/New Partner category an applicant should not have received prior funding from the Bureau for Global Health (BGH) (or its predecessor offices such as G/PHN, RD/H or S&T/H).  Previous receipt of funding from other USAID Bureaus or Missions would not preclude an applicant from applying under the Entry/New Partner category.  Applicants in the Entry/New Partner category are requested to certify that they have not previously received BGH (or its predecessor offices such as G/PHN, RD/H or S&T/H) funding and provide this certification in their Cost Application.  

Q19:
Are projects in the Expanded Impact category considered in the limit of six?

Q19:
Are projects in the TB category considered in the limit of six?

A19:
Expanded Impact and TB applications are considered in the limit of six on-going programs                      .

Q20:
What can we do to ensure that the PVO bundles are actually collaborative given the prime-/sub-agreement?

A20:
It is the responsibility of the PVO prime (lead) and sub-grantees to determine the type of relationship they would like to have and also how best to ensure that this type of relationship is created, nurtured, and maintained.  

Q21:
For the TB Category, can USAID provide further details on the form of technical capacity at PVO HQ it would like to see?

Q21:   
Can technical capacity also be in advisory board members, consultants, or primarily only in the TB technical backstop?
Q21: 
Does TB "technical capacity at PVO Headquarters" (RFA pg. 40) refer only to staff, or can it also include the applicant's relevant technical advisors serving as consultants, Board members, or advisory committee members?  Can USAID provide further details on the form of technical capacity at PVO headquarters it would like to see? (e.g. staff, consultant experts, volunteer advisors).
A21:
Technical capacity at HQ is one of the three recommended ways for a PVO to demonstrate the ability to implement a quality TB program.  The other options include possession of significant past performance in the implementation of TB prevention and control programs in country, or, if an applicant has limited experience, they must include a formal partnership with an organization experienced in TB prevention and control that will provide technical assistance to the project and capacity development to the U.S. PVO.  The third option, technical capacity at the PVO HQ, means that a HQ backstopping individual with demonstrated field experience in implementing TB prevention and control programs will provide this technical capacity at HQ.  In addition, within the work plan, the applicant will also need to clearly demonstrate how TB technical capacity development will be achieved at the country level.  If an organization will be using the option of technical capacity at HQ to demonstrate quality implementation, the technical capacity must exist primarily with the TB backstop whose CV is included in the application.

Each organization must determine the mechanism/structure by which they will ensure that they have access to individuals competent in providing TB technical assistance.  The important factors are 1) to demonstrate that the individual(s) and\or organization(s) have credible experience in implementing TB prevention and control programs and 2) that the proposal outlines a clear strategy of how these individuals/organizations will routinely guide the technical direction of the program.  This needs to be demonstrated in the workplan.  
Q22:
Will USAID look favorably, or unfavorably, on applications for programs involving HIV and TB LOEs that are to be implemented in countries also receiving, or potentially about to receive, related PEPFAR and/or GFATM funds?  

A22:
All proposals are evaluated solely on the criteria identified in the RFA.  The status of a country as a PEPFAR or GFATM recipient does not have any bearing on the evaluation process.  All proposals must demonstrate how the proposed program compliments and has been coordinated with the NTP and the other TB initiatives (PEPFAR, GFATM) in country.

 

Q23:
Can you provide clarification or examples of what type of activities could be encompassed in an HIV LOE in the TB Category, and a TB LOE in the Standard Category?  

A23:
USAID does not want to lead organizations in any specific direction. Applicants should propose a program that they feel is technically appropriate based on their understanding of the country situation. 

Q24:
The impression I got from the RFA conference is that your budget is allocated 50% for TB and 50% for child and maternal health interventions.  Is this true?
A24:
No, this is not true.  The majority of the CSHGP funding continues to be for child, maternal health, infectious disease and nutrition interventions.  

Q25:
If you end a CS project and submit a final evaluation with a concept paper for the next year (one year gap), would that still be considered an “extension” or would it be considered a new submission?

A25:
Applicants to the Cost Extension category cannot have previously applied their project to the Cost Extension category or currently be under a No-Cost Extension.  In addition, there is no gap between the end of one grant and its transition to a Cost Extension grant; if this does not describe your situation, you must apply under a different category.  Applicants in the Cost Extension category are no longer required to submit a full application.  Rather, organizations are requested to complete their final evaluation according to the established CSHGP Final Evaluation guidelines and to submit the Final Evaluation Report with a 10-page concept paper outlining the program approach, objectives and strategies for the cost extension phase, including changes from the original program and documenting clear support from the Mission for continuation of the program.  The Cost Extension application in this new format is due to USAID/GH/HIDN by January 31, 2005.  Applicants in this category must submit a letter of intent to apply for a Cost Extension in response to this RFA by November 22, 2004.  A copy of the Cost Extension application should be submitted to the USAID Mission by February 11, 2005.  

Q26:
In the case of on-going programs funded in the Expanded Impact category, we assume that expenditures can be made starting from the date that the grant is signed.  Is this assumption correct?

A26:
Expenditures under any grant category cannot begin before the award date.

Q27:
In the bundled proposals, is the Key Staff requirement (1 Field Manager, 1 M&E, 1 HQ) only for the lead or also for the other PVOs?

A27:
In the bundled application, the Key Staff positions can be filled between the applicant organizations (i.e. three (3) total positions between the organizations, not three (3) positions at each organization).  The collaborating partners may propose what is best for a given situation.

Q28:
If a U.S. PVO participates as one of the 3-plus PVOs in a “bundled” Expanded Impact category application, but not as the lead organization/prime recipient, does this count toward the 2-application limit in response to the FY2005 RFA?  Also, would this application stand outside of the requirement that PVOs “may submit one application under the TB category and one application in one of the other funding categories.  Only one application under the TB category may be submitted per applicant.”?

A28:
Applying as a non-lead organization in a bundled application does not count toward the two-application limit per applicant organization.  

Q29:
Can a U.S. PVO apply as one of the non-lead PVOs in a "bundled" Expanded Impact Category application in a country where it is not yet operational?

A29:
Only the lead PVO applicant is required to demonstrate legal authorization to work and operate in the country; however, reviewers may query the rationale of including non-lead PVO partners that are not operational or legally authorized to work in the country.  How would a non-lead PVO partner contribute to a program if it were not operational or able to carry-out activities in country, particularly as the intent of a bundled program is to have greater impact and coverage for a particular intervention or strategy and reach a larger number of beneficiaries? 
Q30:
Is there a page limit for the Cost Application?  Page 13 of the RFA indicates that there is no page limit for the Cost Application Attachments, but does not clarify the page limit (or lack of page limitations) for the Cost Application.

A30:
There is no page limit for the Cost application portion of the application.  

Q31:
We are submitting a proposal under the category of Expanded Impact, in which we intend to expand our existing set of interventions (HIV/AIDS, MNC, CDD, Pneumonia and Immunization), from a sub-district to 3 other sub-districts.  We have noted that burns, though not one of our current interventions, are among the top 10 reasons for childhood morbidity in this district.  We have not focused on prevention of childhood injury in this area before, but are considering adding prevention of burns as a complement to an already robust Child Survival Expanded Impact Proposal. Would this addition be to our advantage or to our detriment?

A31:
Childhood injury prevention is listed as one of the CSHGP technical intervention areas and can be included where the case can be made that this is an important cause of mortality and/or disability.  Please refer to the description of the Expanded Impact category in the RFA to ensure that the proposed program supports the guidance provided for this category.    
Q32:
Are universities, research institutions, and private individuals eligible to apply for the CSHGP?

A32:
No, please refer to the eligibility requirements found in Section C of the RFA and Amendment #2.  

Technical Interventions

Q33:
Water and sanitation is one of the interventions included in the new RFA and emphasis is given to behavioral change and practice.  However, most of the countries where the CSHGP is to be implemented have low access to safe water supplies and, on the other hand, CSHGP don’t support construction works.  How do we expect to get a result from this intervention when access to safe water is almost nil?

Q33:
Are vessels (and other equipment needed to make safe water systems) allowable costs under these grants?

Q33:
Would USAID consider issuing a source origin waiver for the procurement of various equipment needed to manufacture safe water systems (value over $5,000)?

A34:
Activities focused on procuring safe water vessels and water disinfectant at the household level are allowable uses for USAID funding.  Activities, such as construction and procurement of equipment to manufacture safe water systems, that contribute directly to health objectives can be included in an application and supported by USAID funds; however, it is unlikely that grant applications that focus entirely on infrastructure would receive competitive scores since the primary focus of the CSH grants is to address behavior change issues such as critical hygiene behaviors at the household and community level.  These activities and equipment can also be supported and/or contributed through the PVO cost share requirement.  In addition, USAID encourages PVO applicants to demonstrate partnerships with existing manufacturers of safe water systems rather than setting up small scale manufacturing of their own.  Please refer to the web link reference to the 2004 Guidance on Child Survival and Health Funds provided in Annex E for a description of appropriate use of CSH funds. 

Q35:
Is early child development (ECD) a child survival intervention, or has it been officially dropped?  If it has been officially dropped from the approved list of interventions, does that imply that USAID CS funds and the matched funds should not be spent on ECD at any level?

A35:
Early childhood development is not one of the CSHGP technical intervention areas that may be proposed under this RFA; however, there are no restrictions to incorporating ECD as part of an integrated child health strategy.  

Q36:
Please confirm that insecticide-treated nets may be purchased with funds under these grants.

A36:
Purchasing insecticide-treated bednets (ITNs) and insecticide for treating/re-treating bednets are allowable costs under the CSH funds guidance as long as they are not stand-alone programs, but activities that contribute to the overall health objectives.  Please refer to the web link provided in Annex E of the RFA for a description of appropriate use of CSH funds.  The applicant, however, must comply with the Pesticide Evaluation Report and Safe Use Action Plan (PERSUAP) for ITNs available from the relevant USAID Mission.  The applicant must also state how their activities will conform to the requirements of the PERSUAP.  

Q37:
When PVOs are addressing technical intervention areas that require comprehensive approaches (e.g. the wide range of intervention responses that are suggested in the TRMs for Maternal and Newborn Care and the STI/HIV and AIDS, including social support, home-based care initiatives, community and institutional mobilization, awareness raising and health education), is there a minimal level of clinical child survival activities that USAID would like to see?

A37:
There is no minimal level of clinical activities required by USAID.  Applicants should propose what is relevant given the situational analysis, specific target area and beneficiary population.

Q38:
When an activity fits into several intervention categories, is it up to the PVO to choose its categorization in terms of LOE?  For example, if a PVO is implementing PMTCT activities, could it choose to categorize these as maternal and newborn care LOE (versus HIV)?

Q38:
When MCH interventions overlap with HIV interventions (PMTCT), how should PVOs classify them?

A38:
In this example, PMTCT would be classified as an HIV/AIDS intervention.  Applicants should use the Technical Reference Materials as guidance to determine the classification of an intervention.   

General 

Q39:
How is Level of Effort (LOE) calculated; by objective, by budget, by activities?

A39:
CSH technical intervention areas and their respective LOE are determined by the perceived need demonstrated through a situational analysis.  Other budget considerations, such as staff costs, capacity, etc., should be considered when deciding the LOE a project can propose for each intervention area.  Please see pp. 8 of the RFA for a list of technical interventions supported by the CSHGP.  Please note that IMCI is not an intervention area, but rather, a strategy and therefore it should not be assigned an LOE.  

Q40:
Where do we find USAID Field Mission strategic objectives and intermediate results?  Are they country-specific?

A40:
Yes, USAID Field Mission Strategic Objectives are country-specific.  Mission strategic plans can be downloaded from the USAID website or the specific Mission website (http://www.usaid.gov/missions/).  USAID further recommends that a potential applicant contact the Mission PHN Officer, or visit the Mission and speak with them directly.  A list of Mission contacts is provided in the RFA in Annex B.

Q41:
How does a PVO register with USAID?  Referring to the modification posted on September 7th, it appears that a PVO no longer has to be registered with USAID in order to apply.  Is that correct?

A41:
No, U.S. organizations that meet the conditions provided by the USAID Office of Private and Voluntary Cooperation for U.S. PVOs, must be registered with USAID at the time of application submission.  Please visit: http://www.usaid.gov/our_work/crosscutting_programs/private_voluntary_cooperation/reg.html for more information on PVO registration. 

Q42:
Is this a one-time solicitation or an annual solicitation?  If funds are available, do you plan to issue a similar solicitation next year?

A42:
The RFA is issued annually for the CSHGP.

Q43:
In the past we were allowed to cite references (particularly from the Situational Analysis section) in end notes that are in addition to the page requirements.  Is that allowed this year as well?

A43:
Yes, citing references in end-notes is allowed and the end notes pages are allowed as an addition to the stated page limits.  

Q44:
Do applicants need to provide English translations of authorizations and letters, and if so, how does this affect the allowable page count of attachments to the application?  For example, if you require the original document plus the translation, the page count basically doubles.

Q44:
The RFA states that the page limit for Technical Attachments is 35 pages. Is this a maximum of 35 per attachment, or in total (for all of the Technical Attachments)?

A44:
Yes, applicants are expected to provide the original and translations of all relevant documents in the appendices.  Please refer to guidance on pp.13 in the RFA.  In addition, the page limit for all technical attachments is 35 pages.    

Q45:
Does the Table of Contents count towards the 27-page limit of the Technical Application?  Must the applicant also include a list of acronyms and, if yes, does this count towards the 27-page limit of the Technical Application?

A45:
Inclusion of a table of contents is optional and would not count toward the 27-page limit.  An acronym list is advisable and should be included in the appendices.  

Q46:
Will all grants be awarded in September 2005, or is this a process that will run between the announcement of the awards in April and the end of the fiscal year in September?

A46:
Awards will be made on or about September 30, 2005. 

Q47:
Are we encouraged to use the CSSA in our proposals for child survival projects?

A47:
Applicants are encouraged, but not required, to use the Child Survival Sustainability Assessment (CSSA) tool; however, no evaluation criteria are linked to the specific use of this tool.   

Q48:
We plan to engage three local NGOs with service contracts that will amount more than USD 150,000 each during the life of the project.  Do we need all partnering documents from them (e.g., past performance, drug certifications) if they are contractors?

A48:
The lead/prime organization would take responsibility for ensuring that any contractors would meet the criteria listed under Section D, I., 2. 

Q49:
What are the expectations toward building collaborations with other PVOs working in the same health area and in the same country, but which are not listed as a designated partner in the application?
A49:
USAID encourages partnerships of all kinds, including those with new partners.    USAID in Washington and at the Mission-level are interested in working with new partners.  

Q50:
Regarding "Acknowledgment of Amendments to the RFA" (pg. 56, J.), should applicants sign each page of the posted amendment?  Should the applicant return the acknowledged amendment with its application?  If yes, should it be included as part of the Technical Application attachments or part of the Cost Application attachments, and if the former, does it count toward the 35-page limit?

A50:
Applicants should return the acknowledged amendment containing a signature on each page posted along with the Cost Application.  

Funding Availability

Q51:
How does the availability of resources through PEPFAR or the GFTAM affect the prioritization of CSHGP funds?

A51:
The CSHGP does not prioritize based on other funding sources available to the development community.  All applications must provide a strong justification for the intervention areas they select and applicants must choose from the list of appropriate technical interventions.    

Q52:
Will the evaluators of this grant award to small, new start-up PVOs (meeting all other criteria)?  Would a smaller award be considered to be granted (ex; $400,000 vs. $1.5 million) under the FY 2005 grant, or are you just looking for large, “big-impact” organizations?

A52:
The funding amounts listed for each category represent the maximum amount that can be awarded for the life of the grant; however, there is no minimum amount that can be awarded.  Partners of all sizes are encouraged to apply, as long as they meet all the criteria listed in the RFA, see pp. 59-62 in the RFA.

Budget Preparation

Q53:
In-kind contribution of 25%--does that need to be direct money or can it include staff time, resources, etc.?

Q53:
Can matching funds be in-kind?

Q53:
As indicated in the RFA for the CSHGP, applicants must contribute from their non-U.S. Government resources, at least 25% of the total cost of the proposed program.  Will the provision of in-kind resources be recognized as contributions to the total cost under cost-sharing requirements?

A53:
The 25% cost-share must be from non-U.S. Government resources contributed by the applicant.  Certain in-kind contributions are allowable, but they must be relevant to the CSH program.  Please refer to 22 CFR 226.23 and 226.24 for more information about cost sharing contributions.  Applicants may obtain specific information on USAID regulations, policies, and procedures from the ADS on the USAID website: http://www.usaid.gov/policy/ads 

Q54:
Is it possible to provide a sub-grant to a UN institution, like the country representation of the World Health Organization? 

A54:
No, it is not allowable to provide sub-grants to UN institutions.    

Q55:
Is money awarded to a nation under the CSGHP included in or above and beyond the Child Survival and Health funds requested by the USAID Mission in that country?

A55:
The CSHGP award is made directly to the grantee, not to the in-country Mission or national government; therefore, the monies are separate and not inter-related.

Q56:
If a local USAID mission wants to help fund a specific PVO’s program, is that funding considered as part of the main award or can it go toward the matching funds?

A56:
Mission funding cannot be used as matching funds.  If a Mission would like to co-fund an award, that would count toward the total USAID cost of the award.  

Q57:
Why are motor vehicles in the restricted category?  Can we assume it’s ok to budget a new 4WD for project use?

A57:
There are statutory constraints relating to the purchase of motor vehicles and applicants may obtain specific information on these regulations on the USAID website at http://www.usaid.gov/pubs/ads
Personnel

Q58:
Can the M&E position be an in-field staff member?  Or is it expected to be an HQ-based position?  Or a consultant?  Is it expected to be a full- or partial-time position?

A58:
Expectations of M&E capacity vary by funding category; please read the description for the funding category to which you plan to apply for more information.  Depending on the category, the M&E staff member can be a field-based member, a headquarters-based position, or a consultant.

Q59:
If an applicant (entry/new partner) will hire a field manager for the grant program, at what stage of the process must you have selected the person to fill the position (i.e. have a commitment from that person)?  By what point must the position have been filled (i.e. the person hired)?

A59:
The expectation is that the field manager will be hired once funding is awarded.  This person does not need to be identified at the time of the application, however, a job description for the position must be provided in the application.  

Q60:
Our organization operates primarily through affiliates, partners, and volunteer professionals.  Does the full-time public health professional have to be employed by and physically located at the PVO HQ or can this person be employed by and located at an affiliate?

Q60:
Likewise, we utilize local (field) partners to help coordinate and participate in the provision of services.  Does the full time Field Program Manager have to be an employee of the PVO or can this person be an employee of a partner or affiliate?
A60:
The requirement is that at least one public health professional is assigned to and responsible for the CSH grant program at the PVO’s U.S. Headquarters.  This position does not need to be a full-time position.  The Field Program Manager is responsible for overseeing and ensuring the implementation of the detailed work plan and must therefore be accountable to the lead PVO.  If this position is filled by a partner organization, accountability must be clearly demonstrated.  

Q61:
Is there any restriction on a PVO collaborating with a for profit agency? For example, University Research Company (URC) is implementing the Quality Assurance Project in South Africa, and we would like to work with them. We would like to know if there is any restriction on such collaboration.

A61:
No, there is no restriction on such collaboration.  In recognition of the changes in today’s development assistance environment, PVOs are encouraged to think innovatively and creatively about ways to engage private sector partners (e.g. the for-profit sector and foundations) in the development and implementation of their programs.  Please note, however, that applicants are still required to establish a formal documented partnership with a local government entity, non-governmental organization (NGO), community partner or other local organization.  
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